
    

 

AGENDA ITEM III.1a
Regular Board Meeting 

Approved Minutes
September 8, 2014

 
District Attendees 
Lonny Gossett 
Michael McRae 
Misha Sarkovich 
Dave Underwood 
Michael Nisenboym 
Chi Ha-Ly  
 

Board President 
Board Vice President 
Board Member 
Board Member 
Operations Manager 
Finance Manager 
 

Other Attendees  
Bob Walters   SJWD Board President 
Shauna Lorance  SJWD General Manager 
Ted Costa   SJWD Board Member 
George Babcock  Visitor 
 
Absent 
Randy Marx   Board Member 
 
   
   
   
 
AGENDA ITEMS 

 
I.  Call to Order 

President Gossett called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 

II. Public Comment 
 Mr. Babcock expressed concerns with FOWD using the CCF (100 cubic feet) unit as 

a measurement when it comes to water restrictions as it does not reflect the exact 
gallons; the CCF is rounded.  He also noted the variable read dates that would affect 
percentage fluctuation.  Mr. Babcock distributed meter reading information on two 
properties.  
 

 Operations Manager Nisenboym stated that the District uses a common unit of 
measurement-CCF (hundred cubic feet), in the billing system.  He stated the 



Page 2 of 7 

neighboring properties are in the same billing zone; thus, they have the same reading 
dates.  He noted that the District has annual and daily usage rates for comparison. 

 
 President Gossett thanked Mr. Babcock for the information. 

 
 
III. Consent Calendar  
  
 The following consent calendar items were considered and acted upon as follows: 
  

1. Approval of minutes 
a. Regular Board Meeting of August 11, 2014 

2. Accept and file Treasurer’s Report for the month of August, 2014 
3. Accept and file Investment Report for the month of July, 2014 
4. Accept and file Financial Expense Report for the month of August, 2014 
5. Approval of Warrants 
6. Approval of Cal-Card Statements for the month of August, 2014 
7. Approval of Monthly Board Expense Report for the month of August, 2014 
 

Director Sarkovich moved to approve the consent calendar. 

Director Underwood seconded the motion. 

Motion carried with the following votes:  Gossett – aye, McRae – aye, Sarkovich – 
aye, and Underwood – aye. 

Absent: Director Marx 

 

IV. Presentation & Correspondence 
 

1. August 21, 2014 Letter from FOWD to SJWD on Wholesale Financial Plan 

 Operations Manager Nisenboym stated the attached letter to SJWD is related to 
“Take or Pay” for the Board’s reference. 

 SJWD Board President Walters stated SJWD sent a response to the FOWD 
Board; he distributed the response at the meeting. 

 SJWD General Manager Lorance stated that the “Take or Pay” should have been 
part of the financial plan report; it will be included in a future meeting with Bob 
Reed present.  She stated that this will be discussed; whether it will be included in 
the agreement has yet to be determined based on all the other agencies involved.  
She noted that with limited water, if the District adopted the “Take or Pay,” the 
District will pay a fixed amount and there may not be water to be delivered.  She 
asked the Board to consider this when looking at “Take or Pay.” 

 



Page 3 of 7 

2. August 26, 2014 Letter from State of California Department of Water Resources 

 Operations Manager Nisenboym stated the Department of Water Resources 
indicated in the letter that FOWD is eligible to receive water grants.  Regional 
Water Authority is working on behalf of FOWD to obtain grants for the water 
supply projects.   

 

V. Discussion and Action Items: Old Business 

1. Update and discussion on FOWD Water Supply for the month of August, 2014  

 Operations Manager Nisenboym reported that the total 1,255.33 AC-FT of water 
demand in August was met from 14.9% (187.02 AC-FT) groundwater pumping 
and 85.1% (1,068.31 AC-FT) surface water provided by SJWD.  The ratio of 
groundwater production to surface water purchase was higher than normal (90-
10) due to wholesale water provider requesting for additional groundwater 
pumping during part of August.  The District’s overall consumption was 23% 
below the 10-year average for the month and a 20.9% reduction from 2013 for the 
month of August.   

 Vice President McRae inquired on the impact of the water reduction on the 
revenues. 

 Director Sarkovich stated that the District’s revenue comes from 75% fixed 
portion and 25% commodity portion of rates; therefore, the impact is not 
significant. 

2. Discussion and possible action on the hiring of a new certified public accounting 
firm to provide financial audit services in accordance with Fair Oaks Water 
District’s Policy No. 5010 

 Operations Manager Nisenboym stated the District’s prior auditor termed out and 
the District sent out requests for qualifications to nine auditing firms.  The District 
received two proposals from highly qualified firms.  Staff seeks direction from the 
Board; (1) whether the Board would like to interview these two firms or (2) send 
out the requests for qualifications again.  Operations Manager Nisenboym 
suggested that the Budget Committee interview the auditors if the full Board does 
not want to. 

 Director Sarkovich stated that sending out the requests to nine auditing firms is 
enough.  He stated he would be okay with the two auditing firms if the auditors 
are competent and qualified, and if the fees are reasonable. 

 Finance Manager Ha-Ly stated that both auditing firms submitted proposals with 
reasonable fees.   

 Director Underwood inquired whether staff has a preference over the two auditing 
firms. 



Page 4 of 7 

 Operations Manager Nisenboym stated the Board should conduct interviews and 
make the selection.  He stated staff should not get too comfortable with the 
auditors. 

 Finance Manager Ha-Ly stated that since she does the finances for the District, 
she prefers not to be involved with the selection process. 

 The Board directed staff to provide a recommendation at the October Regular 
Board meeting and place this as an action item.  The Board directed staff to invite 
the two auditing firms to the October Regular Board meeting in case the Board 
has questions. 

VI.  Discussion and Action Items: New Business 

1. Discussion on possible annexation of 9291 Madison Avenue into the FOWD 
service area 

 Operations Manager Nisenboym stated that the 9291 Madison Avenue property is 
currently being served by SJWD Retail.  One customer is being serviced by the 8-
inch water main and is separated from SJWD service area by Madison Avenue.  
SJWD Retail approached and asked if FOWD can service this property.  SJWD 
will process all paperwork required by LAFCO to complete the annexation 
process. 

Director McRae moved to approve the annexation of 9291 Madison Avenue into the 
FOWD service area. 

Director Underwood seconded the motion. 

Motion carried with the following votes:  Gossett – aye, McRae – aye, Sarkovich – 
aye, and Underwood – aye. 

Absent: Director Marx 

 

VII. Upcoming Events  
 

1. Fair Oaks Chamber of Commerce Business Luncheon / September 18, 2014 / 
Fair Oaks Community Club House 

 Information only. 

2. Fair Oaks Chicken Festival / September 20, 2014 / Fair Oak Village Park 

 Information only. 

 

 



Page 5 of 7 

 

VIII. Representative Reports 
 

1. Sacramento Groundwater Authority (SGA) 
 No report. 

 
2. Regional Water Authority (RWA) 

 Discussed earlier. 
 

3. San Juan Family of Agencies Executive Committee 
 No report 

 
4. Other 

 None. 
 
 

IX. Directors’ Reports & Comments 
 

1. Budget Committee – (Sarkovich, Underwood) 
 Director Sarkovich inquired on the status of the 2015 Budget and the timing of 

the completion of a 2015 Budget draft. 
 

 Finance Manager Ha-Ly stated a draft could be ready in late September or early 
October. 

 
 Director Sarkovich stated he would like to meet in early October around 5 p.m. 

 
 Director Underwood is also available in the late afternoon. 

 
 Operations Manager Nisenboym stated staff will send out the suggested dates in 

early October to the Budget Committee members.  
 

2. Technical Advisory Committee – (Marx, McRae) 
 No meeting. 

 
3. Capital Improvement Committee – (McRae, Sarkovich) 

 No meeting. 
 

4. Personnel Committee – (Gossett, McRae) 
 President Gossett stated the next employee meeting is scheduled for September 

16, 2014 and recommended that the Directors spare some time to meet with staff. 
 

5. Public Relations Committee – (Underwood, Gossett) 
 No meeting. 

 



Page 6 of 7 

 
6. Other 

 Director Sarkovich provided an update on Timothy Healey.   

X. General Manager’s Report 
 

1. Monthly Maintenance Work Report 

 Operations Manager Nisenboym stated that the monthly maintenance work report 
provides detailed information of work completed. 

2. Capital Projects Status Report 

 Operation Manager Nisenboym stated that the Capital Project status report 
provided the budget to actual information on all capital projects.  He stated the 
District completed the 24-inch mainline replacement.  The two pending items are 
street markings and restoration of striping.  

 Director Underwood inquired on the status of the Madison Well. 

 Operations Manager Nisenboym stated that the developer will be placing a sound 
wall and gates at the Madison Well site.  He indicated the hole for the well is 
completed and the District’s next step is to equip the well. 

3. Safety Issues Update 

 No report. 

4. Financial Issues Update 

 Operations Manager Nisenboym stated the District is approximately17% under 
budget for the YTD operating expenses as of August 31, 2014. 

5. Delta Issues – Update on Regional Involvement 

 No report.   
 
 

6. Other 
 None. 

 
XI. Public Comment 

 Mr. Babcock stated that on the “Take or Pay,” he suggested FOWD go with pay for 
what you use. 

 Mr. Babcock stated he prefers SSWD and SJWD enter into an agreement rather than 
consolidate. 

 Mr. Babcock inquired where the baseline for the percentage cutback came from.  



Page 7 of 7 

 Director Underwood stated the state requires water districts to complete the Urban 
Water Management Plan every five years.  On the last Urban Water Management 
Plan, one of the tasks was to set a baseline for the percentage cutback. 

 Operations Manager Nisenboym stated that the state developed baseline is very 
defined and is calculated based on historical data (20% reduction we have to achieve 
by 2020).  The baseline is not looking at individual but on the overall system demand.  
The FOWD Urban Water Management Plan is on the website. 

 Mr. Babcock provided an overview of the drought committee items including 
volunteer core and conservation stages. 

 
XII. Adjournment 

With no further business to come before the Board, President Gossett adjourned the 
meeting at 7:54 p.m. 
 
 

The Board approved the preceding minutes on October 13, 2014 
 
________________________________   ___________________________ 
Tom R. Gray      Date  
General Manager/Board Secretary 

 
 


